OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
106 Hancock Road
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

School Board Meeting
Tuesday, May 16, 2023
7:00 p.m.
Physical Location: SAU #1 Board Room

Livestream Link: https://www.youtube.com/c/ConValEvents

Agenda

. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
. Points of Pride
. Student Representative — Katherine Craig
. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)
. Public Comment
. Consent Agenda
a. Acceptance of School Board Meeting Minutes
1) May 2, 2023
b. Personnel
1) Nominations
c. End of Year Schedule
7. Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business
a. Monthly Events Calendar
b. School Board Requests
c. Edith Bird Bass Volunteers
8. Reports
a. Strategic Organization Committee Meeting — Alan Edelkind
b. Communication Committee Meeting — Alan Edelkind
c. Budget & Property Committee Meeting/FY22-23 Fund Reduction — Jim Fredrickson
9. Old Business
a. Policies — 2" Read/Adoption
EBCA: Crisis Prevention & Emergency Response Plans
b. Swimming
c. ATC Capital Campaign
10. New Business
a. Field Trip Proposal (Board Vote Required)
1) ConVal Regional High School, 11-12"" grade students, travel to Orlando, FL from June 26
to July 2, 2023. Students will compete at Education Rising Nationals Conference and attend
workshops.
2) ConVal Regional High School, Class of 2024 Senior Trip to Quebec, Canada for 3 days/2
nights to promote camaraderie.
b. Accept Gift/Donation (Board Vote Required)
1) Great Brook School requests authorization to accept $2,157.43 from the Antrim Trust Fund
for the purpose of purchasing a “Scrim” curtain for the Great Brook School stage.
2) South Meadow School requests authorization to accept $1,000 from Constance Heinz
(Renew Church) for the purpose of community assistance (helping families in need.)
c. Expense and Encumbrance Report — Lori Schmidt
11. Public Comment
12. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A: 3, I
13. Adjourn

DAL WN =



OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
106 Hancock Road
Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD

School Board Meeting
Tuesday, May 2, 2023
Immediately Following Public Hearing @ 7:00 p.m.
Physical Location: SAU #1 Board Room
Livestream Link: https://www.youtube.com/c/ConValEvents

‘Minutes
BOARD ADMINISTRATION
William Bryk, Tom Burgess, Dr. Kimberly Saunders, Supt.
Richard Dunning, Alan Edelkind, Dr. Ann Forrest, Asst. Supt.
Jim Fredrickson, Dan Harper, Lori Schmidt, B.A.
Thomas Kirlin, Greg Kriebel, Tim Grossi, Facilities
Crista Salamy, Liz Swan Cari Christian-Coates, Student Serv.

Heather McKillop, CVHS

Kevin Proctor, A.D.
Katherine Craig, Student Rep.

1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Dick Dunning called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

2. Points of Pride
Kimberly Saunders shared various Points of Pride as reported to her by administrators.

3. Student Representative — Katherine Craig

Katherine Craig reported that Advance Placement exams kicked off today. Also, Seniors will be able to wear
merch from schools they’ve been accepted to tomorrow. Fundraising includes ConVal car magnets for sale
for the Class of 2025; Educators Rising is holding a fundraiser for their trip to compete in Florida this summer;
the ConVal Film Festival is May 4th at 7:00 pm in LHT. The Great East Music Festival is next week. Lastly,

a Service Learning trip to the Seacoast Science Center with the National Honor Society is scheduled next
week.

4. Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)

Lori Schmidt certified that manifests listed, totaling $1,503,662.27 have been reviewed by her and found to
be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District for goods and/or services received and have
been properly processed prior to their submittal to the School Board.

Jim Fredrickson moved to approve the Manifests as presented. William Bryk seconded. Unanimous.

5. Public Comment
None.

6. Consent Agenda
a. Acceptance of School Board Meeting Minutes
1) April 18, 2023
b. Personnel
1) Nominations
Kimberly Saunders reported that hiring in earnest has begun.

Dick Dunning reported that last week was Administrative Office Professionals Day. He reported visiting each
in the District.

P1



On June 1st, a get together with the CVEA and the Board will take place from 4 to 5:30 at the Peterborough
Golf Course.

c. May 1, 2023 Enroliment Update
May 1% Enroliment was referenced.

William Bryk moved to accept the Consent Agenda. Alan Edelkind seconded. Unanimous.

7. Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business
a. Monthly Events Calendar
The Monthly Events Calendar was reviewed. Changes should be sent to Brenda Marschok and Dick Dunning.

b. School Board Requests
Kimberly Saunders reported work underway in putting presentations together. School Board members were
asked to submit a test request to the School Board Request email.

¢. Swimming - Kevin Proctor
Kevin Proctor, Athletic Director, distributed a ConVal High School New Club/Team Proposal.
Mr. Proctor said that for the past three years students have competitively participated in NHIAA swimming by
utilizing the resources of Keene High School in a process known to the NHIAA as “piggybacking”. Athletes
participate for the school in which they attend. This past year, ConVal had five swimmers. ConVal swimmers
represented ConVal. This is a great relationship to have. They have a coach and they handle all of the
expenses getting pool time. Four of the athletes will return next year and would like to continue and represent
ConVal High School.
The request is for the swimmers to continue this relationship for the next three years. If ample participation
is shown at the end of three years, funding will be asked of from the ConVal School District. The approximate
cost for athletes to register with the NHIAA and compete in the state meets is $800.00.
Piggybacking is prevalent because not many schools have access to pools and its resources. This is not a
Co-op like ice hockey.
Crista Salamy clarified that for the next three years the team would be self-funded and in the fourth-year
funding is being asked.
Kevin Proctor confirmed that the 23/24 year will be year one. Costs were paid by the athletes directly to
Keene.
Jim Fredrickson asked what is being asked.
Kevin Proctor said that this began several years ago but was not brought forward to the School Board.
This is being brought forward to allow students to participate eventually with the full backing of the ConVal
School District.
Crista Salamy asked if a Co-op is combined to make one team but piggybacking allows the athlete to represent
their home school. Confirmed. A co-op splits the costs.
Crista further asked about swimmers in past years.
Kevin Proctor reported that it began with one student.
Liz Swan asked if it was fair to say that the lack of interest in swimming is related to the lack of resources.
Would more kids be inspired with the piggyback relationship?
Kevin Proctor said that he would love for more students to be engaged with things they are passionate about.
Liz Swan asked if transportation would be a consideration in the future for meets and events and training.
Kevin said that currently swimmers are responsible to be driven to Keene to access events.
Dan Harper said that currently students take care of the fees. Are there students who are not comfortable or
able to pay the fees and if so; are there funds available?
Kevin Proctor said that he is unsure if there are students who are uncomfortable.
Heather McKillop reported that there was an anonymous donor for this purpose earlier this year.
Crista Salamy asked moving forward if they would still fall under the Keene umbrella but students would
represent ConVal.
Dick Dunning said that three years is asked to determine if the team is viable.
Kimberly Saunders said that we would have to put a rider on our insurance for liability insurance.
Jim Fredrickson suggested that the current status be approved when voted.
Dick Dunning said that the request that is brought forward is what will be voted on.

P2



Kimberly Saunders said that we have historically had a three-year limit when a club or team has been asked
to be implemented.

Liz Swan asked how we are letting athletes know about funds available to them for situations when they might
not be able to self-pay.

Heather McKillop said that if financial hardships exist it is shared through a standing statement to all athletes
across all sports to let them know that help is available and how to access it.

Katherine Craig endorsed this and said that not worrying about the financial piece is a benefit.

Dick Dunning shared that this will be brought up at the next board meeting to allow board members to read
the information. He wished the swimmers good Iuck.

Kevin Proctor thanked the Board for their time this evening.

Kimberly recognized Representative Jonah Wheeler as present this evening.

8. Non-Public Session: RSA 91-A: 3, II

William Bryk moved to enter into Non-Public Session in accordance with RSA 91-A:3,ll for matters of
personnel, negotiations, and legal.

Jim Fredrickson seconded. Unanimous on a roll call vote at 7:35 p.-m.

William Bryk moved to exit Non-Public Session at 8:06 p.m. Greg Kriebel seconded. Unanimous.

9. Reports
a. Strategic Organization Committee Meeting — Alan Edelkind

Alan Edelkind reported that two motions are needed tonight. The first is a traditional motion:
The ConVal School Board, delegates to the Strategic Organization Committee the
responsibility/authority to take the necessary actions to analyze, determine and provide
recommendations to the ConVal School Board for the engagement of an Organization that will provide
services to the ConVal School District as relates to the Consolidation/Reorganization Project.

Greg Kriebel seconded. Unanimous.

Alan Edelkind referenced a second motion needed. Requests for Proposals (RFP’s) have been sent out and
received back. Analysis criteria have been produced.

To go forward as a committee, the completed RFP’s will need review. All analysis documents will be
completed. A company will be agreed upon to enter the next phase. Contract finalization, with the exception
of signing, will be worked on and presented to the board. A vote to proceed will be asked. After the contract
is signed, the activity phase will initiate.

The motion was shared as follows by Alan Edelkind:
The ConVal School Board authorizes its Strategic Organization Committee (SOC) to enter into all activities
leading up to, but not including, contract signing with the vendor the committee recommends to engage with
ConVal in its Consolidation/Reconfiguration project. These activities include, but are not limited to:
e Review completed RFP’s received
Complete all above documents
Discuss and agree on a company to enter into the next phase with (negotiations)
Work with the company selected on negotiations for project activities
Report progress to the board
Work on contract finalization (not signing)
Present to the Board on above activities and ask for a vote to proceed with signing a contract —
committee, legal, administration
William Bryk seconded.
Tom Kirlin asked about the Consolidation/Reconfiguration title. It appears that it is preconceived and that
status quo is not an option.
Alan Edelkind said that the committee makes recommendations and the board approves it.
William Bryk said that the recommendations could be rejected. Confirmed.
Tom Kirlin said that he agrees with the principle of the project but not the name.
Tom Kirlin opposed the motion. Crista Salamy abstained. All others in favor. Motion carried.

P3



b. Selectmen’s Advisory Committee Meeting — Alan Edelkind
Alan Edelkind reported that Jeff Brown was voted as Chairman. The responsibilities were shared as outlined
in the Articles of Agreement. SAC’s representation on SOC was discussed. A discussion on workforce

development took place. Meeting frequency was discussed. Trust Fund balances and how they are used
was requested.

10. Old Business

a. Strategic Organization Committee Charge
None.

b. Policies - 2" Read/Adoption
JJA: Student Activities & Organizations
Crista Salamy moved this policy forward for a second read. William Bryk seconded. Unanimous.

IC: School Year and School Year Calendar
Crista Salamy moved this policy forward for a second read. Tom Burgess seconded. Unanimous.

EBCD: Emergency Closings/Emergency School & District Closings
Crista Salamy moved this policy forward for a second read. Tom Burgess seconded. Unanimous.

Crista Salamy reported that Policy BDE: was discussed this evening at Policy Committee. We are currently
piloting a new way for the board and committee meetings to meet. Crista Salamy suggested that this policy
be suspended until March 2024. Some committees are reporting directly to the board e.g. Education, Equity,
Wellness. In March 2024 it will return to see if it will continue to be suspended.

A full board vote is required to suspend this policy.

William Bryk moved to suspend this policy through March 2024. Crista Salamy seconded.
Unanimous.

11. New Business
a. Policies — 1%t Read

EBCA: Crisis Prevention & Emergency Response Plans
Passed over.

b. Rescind Policy
ICA: School Calendar
This policy is being rescinded because Policy IC was adopted.
William Bryk motioned to rescind Policy ICA. Tom Burgess seconded to rescind. Unanimous.

c. Exchange Students
Kimberly Saunders said that at the last meeting the Rotary rep shared information about the Rotary Exchange
Program. She asked the board to direct her to work exclusively with the Grand Monadnock Rotary for
Exchange Students.
William Bryk moved to approve working with the Grand Monadnock Rotary exclusively for exchange
students. Greg Kriebel seconded. Unanimous.

d. Field Trip Proposal (Board Vote Required)
1) ConVal Regional High School, 10-12"" grade students, travel to Spain from April 21-29, 2024.
Students will expand their knowledge and engage with content in a variety of situations, and
learn about culture with memorable moments.
Liz Swan moved to approve the field trip as requested. William Bryk seconded. Unanimous.

2) Great Brook School, Grade 7, VEX Robotics requests travel to Dallas Texas from April 29-

May 4™, 2023 to compete in the World Championship competition.
Liz Swan moved to retroactively approve this request. Tom Burgess seconded.

P4



Greg Kriebel asked why vote for something that has already happened. Kimberly Saunders said that by
policy, all overnight field trips must be approved by the board. If something happened while students are
there, liability is an issue.

Dick Dunning said that this is brought forward because the board must vote.

Greg Kriebel asked for accountability. Dick said that sometimes things fall through. We will follow our policy
and we are bringing this forward.

Crista Salamy said that because we are voting on it now and students are already there, would our insurance
cover it because the vote did not occur in advance. Kimberly confirmed that our insurance would cover
students.

William Bryk said that this is called ratification and moved that we ratify this proposal.

Tom Burgess seconded. Greg Kriebel opposed. All others in favor. Motion carried.

e. Budget Transfers — Lori Schmidt
Lori Schmidt reported that when the budgets are approved it is based on line items. Policy dictates that
transfers in excess of $10K must be brought to the board.
Lori referenced a Budget Transfer request and projected report.
Alan Edelkind motioned to approve the budget transfers. Jim Fredrickson seconded. Unanimous.

An updated summary of trust fund activities was shared. Over drafted accounts as a result of trust fund
payments were detailed. When a public hearing for these expenditures takes place, reimbursement from the
trust cannot be requested until the expense has been incurred.

The Peterborough Elementary School roof project will begin in June and likely be reimbursed in the next fiscal
year.

f. Expense and Encumbrance Report — Lori Schmidt
None.

12. Public Comment
None.

13. Adjourn
William Bryk motioned to adjourn at 8:35 p.m. Greg Kriebel seconded. Unanimous.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda Marschok

PS5



OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS

Peterborough, New Hampshire

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT

June 2023 Resignations:

CVHS
Robin Croteau

GES
Amelia Barnes

2023-24 Nominations:

AES
Elora Chase

CVHS
Alyssa Hamilton

Andrew Helliesen

GBS
Chance Margheim

SMS
Laura Dryer

May16, 2023

Personnel Agenda

Science Teacher

Grade 1 Teacher

Art/Music Teacher

English Teacher

Math Teacher

Special Education Teacher

.6 Math Interventionist

Pé

$48,100

$42,100

$54,100

$57,100

$46,331.40



Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Monday
Monday
Tuesday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Friday
Tuesday
Tuesday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Saturday
Monday
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday
Sunday
Monday
Wednesday
Wednesday

Thursday it

Thursday
Thursday
Friday
Friday
Friday
Friday
Friday
Monday
Monday
Monday
Monday
Tuesday
Tuesday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Thursday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday

May 2
May 3
May 4
May 5
May 6
May 8
May 8
May 9
May 9
May 10
May 10
May 11
May 12
May 12
May 16
May 16
May 16
May 17
May 18
May 18
May 19
May 20
May 20
May 22
May 22
May 23
May 24
May 24
May 25
May 26
May 27
May 28
May 28
May 29
May 31

May31

June 1

June 1

June 1

June 2
June 2
June 2

June 2
June 2
June 5
June 5
June 5
June 5
June 6
June 6
June 6
June 7
June 7
June 7
June 7
June 7
June 7
June 8
June 8
June 8
June 9
June 10

12:00-2:30 PM
8:00 AM-12:00 PM
7:00-8:00 PM
8:00 AM-12:00 PM
all-day trip
8:00 AM-12:00 PM
during TASC
8:00 AM-12:00 PM
12:00 PM-2:00 PM
12:00-3:30 PM
7:00 AM
8:00 AM-12:00 PM
8:00 AM-12:00 PM
all-day trip
5:30-7:30 PM
during TASC
ali-day trip
times TBA
all-day trip
times TBA
12:00-4:00 PM
all day
7:00-10:00 PM
8:30-11:30 AM
TASC, 10:30 AM
after school
9:00 AM~2:20 PM
6:30-9:00 PM
9:00-10:30 AM

9:00 AM-2:00 PM
8:00-10:00 AM

7:35 AM-2:20 PM
- 3:00 PM-11:30 PM

T45-9:00 AM
during TASC
during TASC

7:00-8:00 PM
during TASC

during A, B, C hinches

during regular class
10:45-11:30 AM
11:35-1:50 PM
1£50-2:20 PM
7:35-1017 AM
12:30-1:15 PM
during regular clags
7:35-9:30 AM
7:35-9:30 AM
9:30-11:00 AM
11:00-12:00 AM
3:30 PM
6:00-7:30 PM
7:35-9:00 AM
9:00-11:00 AM
9:00 AM-1:30 PM
9:00-11:00 AM
10:00 AM-12:00 PM

ConVal Regional High School

End-of-Year Calendar 2023

May 2023
AP Psychology
AP Literature and Composition
ConVal Film Festival

Library (Small Room)
Rm. 116 and Library (Small Room)
Lucy Hurlin Theatre (LHT)

AP US History Library
Ocean Bowl Trip Rye Beach
AP Calculus BC Library and Rm. 550

Senior Class Meeting

AP English Language and Composition Library
AP Physics C: Mechanics Rm. 411
AP Biology Rm. 411 and Library (Small Room)
Teacher Appreciation Week Breakfast hosted by NHS
AP World History Library and Rm. 550
AP German Language and Culture Library and Rm. 550
Great East Music Festival Agawam, MA
World Language Honor Society Inductions Lucy Hurlin Theatre (LHT)
Job Fair ConVal High School Cafeteria
Annual Envirothon Competition NHTI, Concord
AP Makeup Test Window locations TBA
Student Council Service Learning Trip Seacaast Science Center
AP Makeup Test Window locations TBA
AP Makeup Test Library (Sm. Room) & Rm. 55¢'
Children and the Arts Day downtown Peterborough
Junior-Senior Prom Keene Country Club
NEACAC College Fair Keene State College
Underclass Meetings for Elections
Pops Concert Setup ConVal Gymnasivm
NH Scholars Field Trip Milford - NH Sperts Dome
Pops Concert ConVal Gymnasium
In-School Pops Concert ConVal Gymnasium

District-wide Professional Develop t Day (no school)
Spring Crafts Fair (Fundraiser for Class of 2025) ConVal Gymnasium
Break The Sitence 5K ConVal High School

Last day to play Spring sports

Memorial Day (no school)
Careers in Education Field Trip

Eric Carle Museum, Amherst, MA

Senior Class Trip Red Sox Game with "Class of 2023" theme
Entrepreneurship Trade Show
Senior Class Meeting
Speeches for underclassmen g for el

Last Day of Classes for Seniors
Spring Fling i
Music Banquet, Thespian Society Indi Lucy Awards LHT & ConVal Cafeteria
lee Cream Social for CARES winners ConVal Cafeteria
Voting for Officers 9-11 Grades ConVal Cafeteria Hallway
Semior Exams Blocks 1 & 2
SMS Step-Up Day — 8th Grade Tours
Marching Practice (Students take Lunch A) ConVal Gymnasium
Senior Cords and Certificates — NH Scholars Cords ConVal Gymnasium
Marching Practice ConVal Gymnasium
GBS Step-Up Day — 8th Grade Tours
Senior Exams Blocks 3 & 4 Seniors return CBs w/checkout form
Senior Makeup Exams ConVal Gymnasium
Marching Practice ConVal Gymnasium
Academic and Athletic Achievement Awards (Grades 9-12) ConVal Gymnasium
Senior Checkout Forms Due Main Office
Senior Grades Due
Scholarship Night ConVal Gymnasium
Senior Breakfast ConVal Cafeteria
Marching Practice ConVal Gymnasium
Biology Class Field Trip MacDowell Dam, Peterborough
Marching Practice ConVal Gymnasium
Graduation

Graduation information:

* Each graduating senior will receive five (5) tickets per family for reserved seating. Tickets will be distributed with cap & gowns during marching practice.

The ticket must be shown at the gate/door for admittance.
* Seniors arrive by 8:30 AM on Saturday, June 10.
¢ Parents/relatives/friends are asked to remain seated during the ceremory.

Tuesday June 13 Last Day of Classes for 9-11 Grades
Wednesday Junel4  7:45-9:15, 9:45-11:15 AM 9-11 Grade Exams Blocks 1 & 2
Thursday = June15  7:45-9:15, 9:45-11:15 AM 9-11 Grade Exams Blocks 3 & 4
Thursday  June 15 9-11 Grades Chromebook Return Leave CBs in Block 4 Classrooms
Friday June 16

Underclassmen Make—Ui; :;ay (% Day)



1€ 0€ 62 8¢
‘wd 00:2 @ NVS
® 83N 9nIWwWo)
Asosinpy
m.:m:._uuw_wm
L2 92 T4 ve 1 4 (44 12
‘wd 00 @ NVS
®@ "S3N pJeog |jooyds
‘wd 5§ ®@ NVS
® 81N @91lWWOo)
Aliadoud g 198png
(174 61 8T LT 91 ST 14"
‘wd 00:9 @ NVS
® "SyN 9a1IWWo)
uonediunwwo)
€1 [4? 1T 0t 6 8 L
SuiiesaH
211qnd Buimojjoy
APreipaww @ nvs
@ 31N pJeog |ooyds
‘wrd 00:£ @ NVS
® 8uliesH o1qnd
‘wd 0€:§ @ NVS
®© 31N 291WwWo) ‘wd
uonezjuedio Sv:S @ NVS @ SIN
213918118 @a11wwo) Adljod
9 S 1% € r4 1
Aepanjes Aepri4 Aepsinyy Aepsaupap Aepsany Aepuopy Aepung

€20z AeN

P8



0€

62

8¢

X4

9¢

S¢

ve

€¢

‘wd 00:4 @ NVS
® "SI 3311WWOo)
Alosiapy
S,uUsawIs|as

[44

T¢

‘wrd 00:2 @ NVS
@ "SuN pieog jooyds

‘wd S:5 @ NYS
® ‘SIN 991IWWO0)
Al1adoud g 198png

0z

61

8T

LT

91

ST

144

‘wd 00:9 @ NVS
© ‘1N 3IWWOo)
uonesuNnwwo)

€T

(4}

It

(14

‘wd 00:2 @ NVS
® 81N pseog jooydS

‘w-d

S7:S @ NVS @ SN
991HWwwo) Adljod

Aepanies

Aepuy

Aepsanyy

Aepsaupam

Aepsang

Aepuopy

Aepung

€20z aun|

P9



ConVal School District Policy EBCA

CRISIS PREVENTION & EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANS

Category: Recommended Related Policies: ADD, EB, EBCD, EG, JICK & JLCJA
Related Administrative Procedures: EBCA-R & EG-R

The Board recognizes that schools are subject to a number of potentially dangerous events, such as
natural disasters, industrial accidents, acts of terrorism, and other violent events. No school is
immune from these events no matter the size or location. The Board is committed to the prevention
of these events, to the extent possible, in the schools and at school-sponsored activities.

ite-specific Emer ions Plan (RSA 189:64). Each school shall develop a
site-specific school emergency operations plan (“EOP”) based on and conforming with the

Incident Command System and the National Incident Management System and pursuant to RSA
189:64.

Each Emergency Operations Plan will address hazards as including, but not limited to: acts of
violence, threats, natural disasters, fire, hazardous materials, medical emergencies, and other
hazards deemed necessary by the School Board or local emergency authorities.

School building principals shall annually review their site-specific EOP and submit updated plans
(or report of no changes) to the Superintendent or designee for review by August 1.

If, after such review, the plan remains unchanged, then the Superintendent or designee in
conjunction with the building principal shall notify the New Hampshire Department of Safety
and/or the New Hampshire Department of Education by October 15 that the plan is unchanged. If
an Emergency Operations Plan is updated/revised, the Superintendent or designee in conjunction
with the building principal shall submit the updated Emergency Operations Plan to the Director
of Homeland Security and Emergency Management of the Department of Safety by October 15.

All-hazard and fire evacuation drills shall be conducted annually pursuant to Board
policy EBCB.

B. District-wide Crisis Prevention and Response Plan.

The Superintendent, in consultation with appropriate personnel, and in coordination with local
emergency authorities, shall develop a District-wide Crisis Prevention and Response Plan (the
“District Crisis Plan™). The District Crisis Plan shall serve as a compilation of each site-specific
Emergency Operations Plan for each District school and shall include the current Sports Injury
Emergency Action Plan as required under Board policy JLCJA and RSA 200:40-c.

The District-wide Crisis Plan will include provisions addressing coordination of crisis prevention
and responses between and among the different schools, grounds, school buses, and other
facilities of the District.

The District Crisis Plan shall be updated and provided to the Board for review by October 31
each year (i.e., after the site-specific EOP’s are submitted to the state).

C. Coordination. The Superintendent will establish a relationship with local and state emergency
services (e.g., police, fire, ambulance, etc.). Unless otherwise provided in a site-specific EOP, the
District-wide Crisis Prevention and Response Plan or the District Communication Plan, the
Superintendent, or his/her designee, will serve as the coordinator/liaison with these authorities.
Additionally, the Superintendent should designate personnel to explore the availability of any

P10



ConVal School District Policy EBCA

CRISIS PREVENTION & EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLANS

training or support provided by the New Hampshire Departments of Education and/or Safety
associated with risk assessment, crisis management, and other matters related to this policy.

Legal References:
RSA 189:64, Emergency Response Plans

RSA 193-D, Safe School Zones

RSA 193-F, Pupil Safety and Violence Prevention

RSA 200:40-c, Emergency Plans for Sports Related Injuries

N.H. Dept. of Education Administrative Rule, Ed. 306.04(a)(2), Promoting School Safety

1st Read: May 16, 2023

2nd Read:
Adopted:

P11



High school students in the Monadnock Region may soon be benefitting from a much needed
renovation to their career and technical education (CTE) center, the Region 14 Applied
Technology Center. This CTE center serves students in the ConVal, Jaffrey-Rindge, and
Mascenic school districts and gives them the opportunity to explore careers in the following
industry pathways:
Automotive Technician
Business
Careers in Education
Computer & Information Technology
Construction Trades
Digital Photo & Video
pre-Engineering
Firefighting & EMT
Graphic Design
e Manufacturing
Possible Programs Adds
e Health Science (ConVal)
e Animal Science (ConVal)

Students in these pathways are able to use industry-current equipment and benefit from
instruction and mentoring by professionals. The current CTE center was built in 1996 and the
majority of the space is out-of-date with current industry standards. The renovation provides our
community with the opportunity to reinvigorate our programs to better serve our students and
community by preparing students to be career-ready with the “soft skills” employers are looking
for as well as content knowledge specific to their preferred career field, industry recognized
credentials, and transcripted college credits.

The state’s building aide budget will support up to 75% of renovation costs. According to RSA
188-E:10.1l, the remaining 25% of costs “may be funded through local community funds, career
and technical education tuition payments, gifts, contributions, and bequests of unrestricted
funds from individuals, foundations, corporations, organizations, or institutions.” Any business
who makes a donation toward these costs is eligible for a 100% tax credit against business
profit taxes, per the Work Based Learning Tax Credit (SB270).

Donations made to the Region 14 Applied Technology Center renovation project will help to
lessen the economic burden on taxpayers. | propose a tiered donation system that allows a
range from individual and family gifts to corporate donations to be recognized and contribute to
the 25% of local funds toward the ATC renovation. Donations can be recognized via a leaf on a
giving tree to be displayed in the lobby of the ATC or, for larger corporate gifts, the naming of a
location in the ATC, in accordance with ConVal School Board Policy FF. Donors will also be
invited to an exclusive viewing of the renovated center, prior to the public open house.

P12



For context: In regards to the Hudson CTE project, the state’s 75% portion was $17,000,000;
the local portion was $4,250,000.

Tiers of support (monetary or in-kind donation value):

Contributor - $50-$1,000: Contributing supporters will receive a letter of thanks and an
invitation to the pre-open house celebration of the newly renovated center.

Bronze - $1,001-$25,000: Bronze level supporters are afforded all of the benefits of the
previous tier in addition to the opportunity to add an engraved leaf to the Giving Tree that
will be displayed in the renovated CTE center lobby.

Silver - $25,001-$99,999: Silver level supporters are afforded all of the benefits of the
previous tiers in addition to the opportunity to add their name to an engraved plaque in
the renovated CTE center lobby denoting their donation status.

Gold - $100,000-$499,999: Gold level supporters are afforded all of the benefits of the
previous tiers in addition to the opportunity to add their name to an engraved plaque in
the renovated CTE center lobby denoting their donation status.

Platinum - $500,000+: Platinum level supporters are afforded all of the benefits of the
previous tiers in addition to the potential to name part of the renovated CTE center in

accordance with ConVal School Board Policy FF.

Potential donors:

MilliporeSigma

Hitchiner

NH Ball Bearings
Monadnock Paper Mill
D.D. Bean and Sons
Microspec

Hutter

Hillsborough Ford

Fenton Family Dealerships
DEW Construction

Osram Sylvania

Smiths Medical

Timkin

Markem Imaje Corporation
Teleflex

Citronics

Label Art Inc. (Wilton)
Liberty Mutual (Keene)
Crotched Mountain (Vail)
Granite Gorge

Monadnock Community Hospital
Degree Controls

Froling Energy

Shaw & Sons

Old Dutch Mustard

P13



CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT - FIELD TRIP PROPOSAL

Policy IJOA-R: At least two weeks before the proposed day of any field trip if transportation is involved, the teacher shall

¥ o

supply the following information to the principal in guphggg& 2l Mascenic Sentor

4 { Spueint Mascnic gmduaﬁ,

: ¢ ad
. . > ‘ &% 2: Shugents conval gmdu&fﬂsﬁm. cf
Name: S qra h G/}/D SSi Grade: l I( 2 School: CVHS e

.. Educafors Risin t1onad G +ho PR A Redqion 19 ATC
Destination: - uﬁ)rjc[}\cﬁo, P-V%MIPLO&__ nad dampedihion G EerierEace. v

Date(s)of Trip: Tune 26 =July 2, r;‘7'(JZ.);)e’}S:’;'tureTirne: §:00 am _ Return By: /200 P
Description of Trip: Students L\UJ}// Hrave | 13 Jﬂzm/u, P/()ﬂé’(ﬁb

by plane 4 competio at+ #£d Kising Natwnals  Confercnce
S’rJMcms il compete _anh atende Workshops.

How will this trip relate to your program and/or curriculum?

Educoturs Kising is our CT20 fur Careersin Educationd pragranm

(Cﬂfﬁﬂr Technic s Studant orgwiszﬂwh)

Studerns onﬂmdmé placed In +he fop 5 in Ethicd Dilamma and
Childiens Litmture (k-3)at NH & Kising) ™, T ports)

CO~pthin '\n Mdrth, Q02 3,
6. Transportation will be by: Bus Co. Private Car * __ Other (explain) \/ le( Nne  Roston Liga
. . . . ‘ . Y. o eV e Orlando,
(Private cars require completion ot District Use of Private Vehicle Form by individual drivers) Clo ﬂ CL e
7. Number of Staff: | Number of Students: L,' Number of Chaperones:

(Proposed list of all adults (staff and chaperones) along with invited students are attached (check) )
: ; C S —
/ﬂ/mﬁ/ Mmai 3)a¢ /23 S —/3)r0e2

Staff Signa

Date dministration Signature Datd

.........................................’..........Q..'.............................'

SCHOOL USE ONLY: At least two weeks prior to the proposed trip, the following information must be
completed. Administration verified (initialed):

'I__\lﬁ_ Bus Confirmation Sent/Received \Q\fbr_ Kitchen Notified If Lunches Would Be Affected -
NIAs PO for Bus: ~ ' 7 o/ Provided Nurse(s) with proposed list

v, PO fot Trip: "Educotrs Kis lr’)@ KS}UAAC;Q % Check in with Nurse(s) rigalidjng meds « s

v Permission Slips To Parents/Guardians Prepared Q CPR/First Aid Trained (name/expiration date):

Posted on School Calendar(s) Saran Gross; égqc}ag()&q

N Staff Absences Entered in Frontline (Sc\noo\s OO% ) Final list provided to Attendance :
A" TASC blocked or rearranged Coverage Arranged for Students Not Attending
[N Check with Attendance, day of event to make sure (If no substitute)

S

student(s) are clear to go

CHOOL BOARD APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR TRIPS OF MORE THAN TWO (2) DAYS
(REFER TO FIELD TRIP POLICY IJOA)

Proposal forms must be submitted to the Principal by April 1%, to the Superintendent by May 1* and approved by
the School Board no later than the August meeting for trips during the new school year

Date Received at SAU Office: Date Approved/Not Approved by School Board:

Superintendent/Board Chairman Signature:

(Please Circle One)

Revised 1/10/2023 - CVHS, KK
P14



CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT - FIELD TRIP PROFOSAL
Policy TTOA-R: At least two weeks before the proposed day of any field trip if transportation is involved, the teacher shall
supply the following information to the principal in duplicate.

L Neme e bile  Gmde 12 Scheok  CVHS

2. Destination: (v eices f»g;&' ORI R

3. Date(s)of Trip: H fflﬁf - ‘%j"éf;z jay _ Departure Time: ~ Return By: o
4. Description of Tiip: 'gggﬁ?:éi_z L Aer cthtelieds e

5. How will this trip relate to your program and/or curriculum? ’TZL«b Lo hl;é,__g N;)‘_fi/.uﬁ_)’*\
et { Y ._..‘_“‘L{ ,\-.__'*;j?,,,_i.. R Q&i.';b ; (»..i‘L T ';}tfm._.._._.___.z _H v . f__ z-j;:_:h (jﬁ oy {
[y ) P
’ s i / " i R st @ H
2 ”!i L ,_,f_?l@ﬁ,ﬁi)\,, Ll pan ’:iﬁ"«wﬂ\/mﬂt}_&, . A
v

6. Transportation will be by: Bus Co. W/ Private Car ____ Other (explain) o
(Private cate require completion of District Use of Private Vehicle Form by individual drivers)
Latinmestio

7. Numbesrof Staff: /&  Number of Students: /20 Number of Chaperones:

(Froposed list of all aduits (staff and chaperones) along with invited students are attached (check) )

~) ; /1 /
Clormndn M. Kloy /25025
‘:,»"/f' Sigﬂm Zi », Date Administration Signature Date

Qeuﬁ@:ﬁggt(xi@mt@ﬁﬁﬂ&t@@ﬂﬁc0&5@63506@@@66&586&@6‘@5@56‘58‘6@&96‘@lﬁ@@‘&t&ate&%’@@&.’&&d&ete‘ea

SCHOOL USE ONLY: At least two weeks prior to the proposed trip, the following information must be
completed. Administration verified (initialed):

Bus Confirmation Sent/Received — Kitchen Nodfied If Lunches Would Be Affected
PO for Bus: - Provided Nurse(s) with proposed list
POforTrp: Check in with Nurse(s) regarding meds
Permission Slips To Parents/Guardians Prepared — CPR/First Aid Trained (name/expiration date):
Posted on School Calendar(s) e e

Staff Absences Entered in Frontline — Final list provided to Attendance -
TASC blocked of rearranged — Coverage Arranged for Students Not Attending
Check with Attendance, day of event to make sure (If no substitute)

student(s) are clear to go

vt’t&‘cl"00&0&&060.‘0&066&0800300&&f&ﬁ«'«"3&0“!‘&“:6“‘3095""’°¢"Q.05tet¢.€l¢t¢‘$0$8&¢lv'oe(~&

SCHOOL BOARD APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR TRIPS OF MORE THAN TWO (2) DAYS
(REFER TO FIELD TRIP POLICY IJOA)

Proposal forms must be submitted to the Principal by April 1%, to the Superintendent by May 1* and approved by
the School Board no later than the August meeting for trips during the new school year

Date Received at SAU Office: Date Approved/Not Approved by School Board: )
(Please Circle Onc) )
Superintendent/Board Chairman Signature: e . e R S

Revised 1/10/2023 - CVHS, KK
P15



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT #1

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
106 Hancock Road, Peterborough, NH, 03458-1197

Telephone: 603-924-3336 Fax: 603-924-6707
Dr. Kimberly Saunders Dr. Ann Forrest
Superintendent of Schools Assistant Superintendent of Schools
ksaunders@conval.edu aforrest@conval.edu
T Contoocook Valley School Board

FROM: S El b

DATE: 5 "//3 VEX

RE: REQUEST TO ACCEPT A GIFT OR DONATION

The (5‘YCA b Berek  Scisel School requests authorization to accept from:

Name/Address: Ko Sz Teoe b . Q : FC» Boy 7 ‘:// Ao ot

the following gift/donation of: # 2, 150043 valuedat*$_2-, (5.4 %

forthe purposeof: __ A  "scvim’ curbin - fe EBS Stge

*All checks, upon receipt, should be sent to Accounts Receivable at the SAU Office.

ffffffff A

TeacHing/Supe ising Principal’s Signature

SAU OFFICE USE ONLY: Date Received

Date Approved by School Board

Date Not Approved by School Board/Reason:

Date Check Received by SAU:

Form Updated: April 2019

P16



NEW HAMPSHIRE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT #1

CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL DISTRICT
OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
106 Hancock Road, Peterborough, NH, 03458-1197

Telephone: 603-924-3336 Fax: 603-924-6707
Dr. Kimberly Saunders Dr. Ann Forrest
Superintendent of Schools Assistant Superintendent of Schools
ksaunders@conval.edu aforrest@conval.edu
TO: Contoocook Valley School Board

FROM: Quﬁu\su / ’\/N Wertzlas

DATE: 5le \o2

RE: REQUEST TO ACCEPT A GIFT OR DONATION

The C%Jl’\r\ moﬁ(‘“\(}\,k) School requests authorization to accept from:
Name/Address: (_cnsianco Homz ( /\ZQDPUJ p\morc\(\B

2203 Tos O T Bawve MDD 201716 1414
the following gift/donation of: (" \iecl. = 6“"”& valued at* $_ /| OO0.00

for the purpose of: (“K\N\m\)ﬂ L\/ Qmo S_{'_Rﬁ(o
(£o \P@\’D (\n“'\\\"(\ ‘k\ ‘¥8m <\€,S T r\OPA\

*All-checks, upon receipt, should be sent to Accounts Receivable at the SAU Office.

:/{‘VUM
Teach(i?b/Supervising Principal’s Signature

SAU OFFICE USE ONLY: Date Received

Date Approved by School Board

Date Not Approved by School Board/Reason:

Date Check Received by SAU:

Form Updated: April 2019

P17



'€2/L/€ pup zz/81/0T sbulbay ljgnd

€ fo T abod

Hoday soueiquinoug pue asuadxy
101151 |O0Y2S [BAUOD

g 'aNUaA3J se paziug02a. pue 3snJ} ajqepuadxa Aq pasinquiial g 0] "S3)IYdA JudWde|dal 104 S3S0d paedpnqun 000°S6S sapnjoui siyL q
"€ZA4 paubis s3o013u0 s3ipnys buliaau1bua ¥ [0IN3233Y24D 10f ZZ/6T /v PUD ZZ/S1/Z ‘2Z/ST/TT sbulipay onqnd
'€207 “aunf a1 utbaq 03 pajnpayds y10m fool S3d 10f 2z/ST/TT bulipaH d1qnd
"9NUBA3J Se paziug0dal g 1snJ] ajqepuadxa Aq pasinquuial aq j|Im sjunowe asay |
'suoijeAoua. 4oy Apnis Suniaauldus g [eandslyd.e 104 S350 pa3adpnqun 000‘00ES Se |[@m se 10af0ud Joou S3d By BY3 4oy S350 paradpnqun 40 000'9TES Ssapndul siyL '
S910N
%861 7096697 805'626CT ST6'LLY'8E 085°298'¢€ 9€0'TOT VS 0 9€0'TOT VS
%000 - - 00007S'T - 000°07S'T s 000°0¥S‘T SANN4 40 $3SN ¥3IHLO| 006
%90°6T | 806'SL G£9'991 8ZL'SST S¥9'T TTE'86€ SLLY 655°0S€ 3DIAY3S Q004 B L83d| 008
] %0S'L-  |(156'Th) 6SL'8YC ¥76°99¢ 998y €EL'TLS (Lvv'9) 6L1'6LS Al¥3dOodd| 00
%878 [80'TET L17'68S 169°€06'T v0SEST 950'v2LT SL0'0€ 186'€69'C $31ddns| 009
%T8'C 86€'£0T TI8'EL6 €20'62L'C T€7'L82 vvz'018'c (61€'65Y) 795'697°Y S3DIAY3S AISYHOUN ¥IHLO| 00S
v %Zr'6-  |(6£8'9TT) €L5'6¥8 82L'8YS T09'8L 1Z7'182'T S0T'29 9TEVTT'T S3DIAYIS ALYIJOYd AISYHIUNd| 00V
%66°L 08€€0€ 68£'690'T TTL'TTP'C SEQ'SYT 6/8'V6L'E SYT'YIY vE€L'08EE S3DIAY3S TVIINHOIL 8 TWNOISSII0Y¥d AISYHIUNd| 00€
%SLT 796'SPE 20€'LY9'T 9/8'765'6 168°LY0'T 6€1°985°CT €28'V8 9TE'T0SZT SLI43IN38 33A01dN3| 002
%ES'9 869'68L'T TIEV8EQ SpZ'61T'6T S9.'£20'C YST'E6E'LT (seT'8LT) 68€'TLS LT S3VIVS| 00T
ajqeje 98
ssion | 1 v_ v aduejeg aueiquindug alA alw Uuﬁ m”ﬁ_,‘ sjuaunsnipy 198png uonduasag Junony .ww_“ uo
€207 |udy

P18



£ fo z abod

voday ddueiquindul pue asuadxy

LISIQ [00YDS [EAUOD

%LTY 89L 9eL'Y v0SCT 6TT'T 800°8T 19T°T V89T 39VISOd| vES
%000 0 876'C TLL'TT wUY'T 669°SC 6€8°C 098‘TZ sauoyd Jejn|iad| 1€S
%S¥'0 0€T'T 18T'v9 ¥0E‘88T YERRT ST9'EST - ST9€SC $5920e g9 M /duoydaal|  0gs
%00'0 = = 059811 = 059°8TT - 059'8TT JDNVINSNI[ 02§
%S0'S 962901 ULT'SLY 09072ST ST9'SLT 87SE0T'C (¥60°929) 729'62L°T NOILVLYOdSNVYL 1dNd| 61§
%66'6 908‘SE £89°00T 0€8'12¢ YIT'EE 0z€E‘8s€ OveE8TT 086'6£C NOILVLYOdSNYYL ¥IHIO| 0TS
%ILL 1243 Lyl 0€T‘e Lyl 00Ty = 002y 1213\ 28e1s0d - [e3uay dinb3l|  6yy
%000 0 672'TT SE'LE ¥9T vL5'6Y ¥65°€C 086'SC siaido) :jejuay dinb3|  epy
%000 - 0S8 00LT 2 08SC (056) 005‘e WWINIY| Ovy
%950 [4:11 9v6°€ [44% 14 €0€'T 0SvZE 00T'LT 0S€‘ST sieday 4a1do)|  9¢p
%TLEE £80°L - TE6'ET = ¥10TC - ¥10'TC AINIVIAI B SHIVdIY ALFHVS| SEV
%TLES 0v°9p LET'VT LSL'ST 906°C S6£'98 (568°9) 0627°€6 IDONVNILNIVIN B SHIVdIY DVAH|  vED
%60°LE 79S°€0T 0817¢T ELV'ES 096°€ S1T'6LC TLT'0C vv06S¢C JONVNILNIVIA B SHIVAIY TVIINVHIIW| €€
%0L'6C SLZ'0T 998'6 Syt S09'T €65VE €v6'T 059°ce JONVNILNIVIA 8 SHIVIY TvOI¥LD313|  ZEV
a %8S'1¢C- (££0'99) 9Ev'0TE ¥81'9Y 9y €VS'T0E (6Tt'9T) 796'LT€E JONVNILNIVIN 8 SHIVdIY IVYNLIONYLS| TEv
o) %9S°TTT- (€zv'zee) 9/5°TTE 122'60T 8780¢ SLE'66T LE9 8€.'86T INIVW/¥IVdIY| OtY
%000 - 0168 e9'ort STP'ZE TES'BYT 966°6T 9€5°6CT ONIMO1d MONS| ZZ¥
%000 = T99TT |3 78747 STEY v0vr'9S 876°L 9Lv'8Y wvsodsial Ty
%00°00T 006 = - = 006 - 006 VSOdSIA TVANINNOYIANI|  0ZF
%L6'T £68'T SE6'TE 8v8'6¢ 343 9/9°€9 E 9/9°€9 YIMIS/HALYM|  TIV
%000 - = SzT - ST ST = ONIYOLNLIVIDIMS| 06€
%CT9S 86v'8TE SeTey 118502 v60°LT 005°£9S 000°0€€ 00S°LET SIDINYIS HO¥Nd| 08E
%08'TT 199°€ - SLE'LT 5 9€0°TE = 9€0°TE SIDINYIS IVOILSILYLS| OpE
%0L'T LLTEE 8€L49TS v79°Z6ET v09°SYT 6£9756'T 020'v8 619'898°T J0Y¥d/Q3SVHOUNd| O0€€
v %6691~ (904°2LT) 97666V L8LETL €L6'6L L00'9%0°T - £009¥0°T SIDINYIS IdNd|  €z¢€
%S6'9L 6v€'89 = 891°0C 80T'T L1888 - L1888 SADINYIS J4VIS| TTE
%69°7S TOELS - vSY'1S 952'T SSL'80T - SSL'80T S3DINYIS 40¥d| TZE
%CE 6T 00€‘E L6 LEBTT (1) S80°LT = S80°LT S3ILINNNY 8 VD 11 - SLI4INIE ¥YIHLO| 662
%000 - - 066T0T - 066'10T = 066'T0T dINOD SYINYOM| 092
%95°C 9.5 - vZ6'TC - 00522 = 0052C dINOD INIWAOTdWINN|  0SZ
%vC0 867'6 0£1°686 7€5°988'C L26L6T 096788'¢E = 096788°€ 3YI13Y ¥IHOV3AL| Z€T
%68'0 €92°L 9SSVLT 192'8€9 TL9'EL 080°0¢8 089ty 0Ev'LLL Y1134 HOVAL- NON| T€e
%ET'0 8LY'T 996‘T9Y SYT'ECY'T TE9'6YT 685°/88'T 69975 616°7€8T Vvold| 02z
%810 1T 0TL9T 7680 08v'S STL'L9 00T §29°29 ALI8VSIA WY3LONO1|  vTT
LTS 9rS‘C 06501 €9T'SE 199°€ 6628y = 667'8Y IDNVHNSNI34N|  €TC
%0€"L L6T'ST L6T9E 690'8ST 8EE6T £99°60¢C (0) £99°607 JIDNVHNSNITVAINIQ| 21T
%19'S 780°01T¢€ 90T°LS6 090'v9C'v 1244134 8YT'TES'S (9652) vv88€S'S FDONVHNSNI HLVAH|  TTZ
%1S°S 87244 S6v ¥99'6€ 9Tv'y 005y 000°S 005°LE INILYIAO|  OfT
%8L'Y 898vS 6€9°092 62'7€8 078cL 88LLYT'T (902'8) ¥66'SST'T SIIYVIVS AYVHOdNIL]  0ZT
%6L°0 [439 0£5°S6T 866669 £86'€L 649206 (000°8S) 6£9'096 SIDINY3S LYOddNS| 61T
%00°0 - 916°L ¥80°6T 792'C 00042 0002 00052 SAV3IH LNINLYVdIa[ STT
%8L'0 956°TC €LT'STS 0S0€92°C 880°91¢ 8/1°008°C = 8L1°008°C HOLVHISININGY| ¢TT
%YE0 896'T VEL'VET LOT'ObY €299 6089/5 (005°2) 60€°6LS IDNVNILNIVIN/IVIQOLSND|  €TT
%ET'0 S6S'T L6TYE 067°9L6 EV8'TIT 998°6TZ'T - 998'6TZ'T SINVISISSY NWaV| ZTT
%St'CT S97'9L€ £T5'T€9 £v0°STOC SL5'€S¢ SE8TTO'E (626'€) ¥9.L'9%0'¢€ SIIYVIVS TYNOISSIHOUdVYHYd| TTT
%69'L SOTLSET S8L'LSE'Y S8TL'EE6'TT 9ST'9vL'T 809'809°LT (005°L6) 80T9VL LT SIWVIVS ¥VINO3Y| 01T
S9JO0N a|qejieay % aduejeg Jueiquindul alA aLn uﬂm“”““ syuawsnipy 193png uonduasag JunodnNy hwﬂw
€207 [1Mdy

P19



"€7/L/€ PUD ZZ/8T/0T sbulibay 21yqnd

€ Jo g abod

Hoday aduesqundug pue asuadxy
13 |00YIS [EAUOD

"3NUIA3L e Paziugodal pue 151} 3|qepuadxa Aq pasinquial aq 01 'S3|dIyaA JUBWIDe|da 10} SIS0D PRIRTPNQUN 0OQ’S6S SAPN|AUL SIYL 3
"3sn 3snu3 404 Buiieay d1jgnd pjoy 10 J3jsuely 195pNng e 93w 0] JBYIBYM O} Se UOIIIBIIP PaaN ‘siuawade|d uonesnpa (eads uj safuey) a
"€ZA4 P3UbIs S190.13U02 ‘77 /6T /¥ PUD ZZ/ST/Z ‘7Z/ST/TT SBULID3H dlqnd
"aNUA3Y se paziug0da. pue Isnu} 3jqepuadxa Aq pasinquiias 3q 0 “suoieAoual Joj Apnis SulaauISua 13 [eandalYdIe 104 SISO Pa1RSPNQuUN 00O‘00ES SIPNIPUI SIYL 5
"€20Z ‘auny a1o] u1baq 03 PaNPayds yiom ‘zz/ST/TT BuLoaH syqng
*103(01d 40 uon3|dWOD UON JUBWSSINGIIRI ISNI3 B 3] [|IM YdIym 133f0ud JOOI SI4 BY) BY) 10§ SIS0 PaIdSPNQUN JO 0OO‘9TES SAPN|AUI SIYL a
"3sN 3513 404 Bunieay d1gnd pjoy 1o Jaysuely 125pnq e e 03 JSYIBYM 0] Se UONDAIIP PA3N "PIBU JUIPNIS UO Paseq SBIIAIBS [UOISSa0.d [BUORIPPY v
SI91ON
%S0°'S T0T'CEL'T 800°T68'CT ST6'LLY'8E 085°298'¢ 9€0'TOT VS # 9€0'T0T VS
%000 - - 000°000°T 4 000°000'T = 000°000°T J1 /S1SNYL| 0€6
%000 - = 000°0vS = 000°0vS = 000°0vS 1VdIDNIYd 3DIAY3S 1830 016
%259 6TT'SY 000°SCT 2 = 6TT°0LT 61T'SY 000°SZT SNO3NVTIADSIN| 068
%000 - = [ 3214 = €918 - €9Y°8C 1S3IYILNI IDIAN3S 1830 0€8
%TV'ST 68L°0€ SL9TY SLTLen S¥9°C 6€L°66T €€9°C 90TL6T $3343S3Inaj 018
%S0'C 098 7606 €€6'TE 8LT'Y S88TY SYS'C TrE'6€ 1IN3dIND3 ¥3H10 6EL
3 %80°'ST- (85€°69) 8TV LET €68'T6C S9T'L ¥S6'65Y (12L'2) SL9'L9Y IN3IWdIND3 1d3¥| 8€L
%9€'TT v8LY 6€S £8L°9¢ 29T (0] 4 847 (€02°2) ETE VY FUNLINYNS 1d3Y LEL
%6€ 8L STZ9T 11T 09T 19T 989°0¢C (522) 196'0¢ INICINDI HO3L ¥3HLO| ¥EL
%91°9S LYS'Y = 0SS'E - 8608 80T 0689 JYNLINYNS MIN €EL
%S8'TT 0£7'99 w18 6vETYT TET'ET 190°06¢ (6€6'v0T) 000'S6€ 3INNOSVYO| 999
%656 0591 €20'€9 678°ETY YET'ST 70S'8€S ST6'L £8S0€S 140ddNS JHYM140S| 059
%C6'ST SLS 90L 6CE'T T0L 019°¢ = 0T9°€ S$304N0S O4NI ¥Y3HLO| 6¥9
%E€0°6 998°T 1S€C LEVOT 1987 ¥59°02 (£9¢) T20°1C S1v2IQ0Iy3d 9
%589 €8S 116'9¢ 876'CS 0902 CTLS8 6ET'T €458 SI004|  0v9
%000 - YPE'E9 056°L6€ €418 Y6219V 980°6€ 80¢‘CLy 10 13N4 vZ9
%100 S 8T9ET LTELT 9T 056°0€ - 056'0€ Sv9 4311089 €79
%000 - 6T8°€6T 9v'LEE 860°6T 18Z'T€S vv9's8 LE9'SYY ALDIMIOIT3 [44:]
%000 0 899°S 10002 099'T 699°st - 69957 S311ddNS ONILSIL| ST9
%Y YT 6v8v0T S6E'8ET 080°€6Y 17819 vTE'9EL 66S'T STLYEL S3MddNS TW¥3INID|  0T9
%L0°0T 0£Y‘6 68V’ €LL°0V 88TV 769°€6 0Sv'vT [4247A J9VITIN|  08S
a %659~ (810°29) 1495744 9ET’€9S S09°0Y 1€7'68L S86°CT 9vT'9LL NOLLINL|  T9S
%TY EE 08T £ 099°s - 005°8 r 005'8 ONILNINd| 0SS
%L9'L A% 07S'y vEE'EE S8TTL 000tV 00091 000'SZ ONISILY3IAQY| OPS
€20 judy

P20



